
OCA/DCAJ-181-B QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 

Question 1

Can we get a copy of the current contract and rates for this RFB?

Answer to Question 1

Please see attached contract # CM00617.

Question 2

I believe we responded to a similar solicitation in 2012 as OCA/DCAJ-183-A/B. Please advise if
this is a revised solicitation for the same cartons or a totally different opportunity?

Answer to Question 2

This bid is for the storage of the New York City County Clerks courts records, and other related
services.  The RFB mentioned in your question was for the storage of court reporter notes.

Question 3

I am in receipt of the sealed bid of Contract Number: OCA/DCAJ-181-B for NYC Court Records
Storage and Other Related Services. As per the instruction, I, David Kotler, working for Sterling
Interiors and a subscriber to NYSCR would like clarification of Subcontracting as described on
Page 10. Sterling Interiors is a dealer of design/build services and we have companies that we do
business with that do the services that you are asking for in this bid. In the bid documents, it is
clearly stated that subcontracting will be permitted only with prior written consent of UCS.

Therefore, the purpose of this e-mail to get that permission from your office. I have done work
for OCA for over 10 years and before we move forward we wanted to address this issue.

Answer to Question 3
Subcontracting is not permitted for this contract with the exception of the three services listed in
the paragraph headed 'Subcontracting'.  Those services are: (1) pick-up and delivery services;
(2) document destruction services; and (3) disaster recovery restoration services. 

Question 4

I am looking for is the last bidder who was awarded this contract and his prices.

Answer to Question 4

Please see answer to question 1:  see attached contract # CM00617.
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Question 5

If awarded the bid, are there any additional Terms & Conditions besides what is stated in the
request for bid (RFB) ?

Answer to Question 5

There will be a contract entered into between the parties; however, all the business terms and
conditions are in the RFB.

Question 6

For file retrievals, will the Courts or Offices provide the box number from where the files need to
be retrieved?

Answer to Question 6

The Courts will work with the awarded vendor to determine an appropriate method of request,
based on the awarded vendor’s index software.  

Question 7

3. Item 6. on page 22 of the RFB - Is the inventory stored at the current vendor indexed by:
County, Court or Office (complete address), "From" - "To" dates, and carton number ?

Answer to Question 7

An inventory printout of the current vendor’ software will be provided to the awarded vendor.

Question 8

Item 6. on page 22 of the RFB - For every new generated box, are the Courts or Offices
providing County, Court or Office (complete address), "From" - "To" dates, and carton number
or is the responsibility of the awarded contractor to capture that information.

Answer to Question 8

The Courts/locations will work with the awarded vendor on a format on which they will indicate
the information relevant to new generated boxes.

Question 9

Item 7. on page 23 of the RFB - Please elaborate on "specific inventory of documents
destroyed". Is the awarded contractor destroying at the box level as opposed to individual files
and/or documents ?
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Answer to Question 9

At the box level.

Question 10

6. Item 2. and item 4. on page 25 Bid Response Form - Can you provide last year's combined
total, for all Offices or Courts, of: total number of trips for pick up, total number of trips for
delivery, total number of files picked up, total number of boxes picked up, total number of files
delivered, and total number of boxes delivered. 

Answer to Question 10

No.

Question 11
How will the records being released by existing vendor be identified?

Answer to Question 11
A process will be established between the Courts, the current vendor and the awarded vendor. 

Question 12
Will the records be shipped by individual court location? e.g. All Family Court 60 Lafayette St.

Answer to Question 12

a)  Records stored at the current vendor will probably not be shipped by Courts /locations.
b) The awarded vendor will be responsible for pick-up and transportation to its facility of the
additional cartons located at the Courts/locations. See item 2, of the bid specifications, pp. 11,
19 and 20, and Exhibit 1 - Listing of Locations for pick-up addresses.

Question 13
How will return to storage be handled during transition?

Answer to Question 13
The awarded vendor will be responsible for notifying Courts/locations on a regular basis of the
boxes that have been transferred to its facility, so that Courts/locations may return retrieved files
to the awarded vendor for re-filing in the appropriate box(es.)
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Question 14

LIMITATION ON LIABILITY
There is no limitation on liability in the RFB. We are not interested in bidding if there is no
limitation on liability.

Record storage vendors typically agree to a limitation on liability based on the physical value of
the box of paper or computer tape (not the potential value of the information assets). The industry
standard is to offer a maximum valuation approximately equal to the annual storage revenue
generated by an archived box. This is usually stated as a fixed flat dollar amount per lost or
damaged box.

This limitation of liability protects vendors from being sued for a lost or damaged record that is
potentially worth millions of dollars (or is priceless) under the right circumstances.

Will the UCS agree to the aforementioned record storage industry standard limitation on liability
in the awarded contract?

Answer to Question 14
No.

Question 15

RECORD RESTORATION AT NO COST
On page 15 of the disaster recovery section of the RFB, record restoration services are requested
at "no cost" to the UCS. This request conflicts with the industry standard limitation of liability
protection that vendors traditionally have in their contracts so it conflicts with offering market
rates for storage. 
Will the UCS re-issue the RFB so that record restoration services are provided at a cost to the
UCS? 

Answer to Question 15
No.

Question 16

DISASTER PREPAREDNESS
Since the UCS is serious about disaster recovery (evident on page 15), is the UCS interested in
having records management vendors bid on digitizing vital records for disaster preparedness? 
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Answer to Question 16
No.  Digitization is not part of this contract.  The UCS wants assurances that the facility is
prepared for disasters such as fire, flood, etc.

Question 17
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
We are willing to offer financial assistance in the form of a check to offset our competitor's
account termination charges (permanent withdrawal and retrieval of records). The bid response
form does not include a section to offer financial assistance. Can we add a section to propose
financial assistance to the bid response form and not be disqualified?

Answer to Question 17
No.

Question 18
What is the current location of the 300,000 cartons?

Answer to Question 18:
20 North 12th Street, Brooklyn, NY 11211

Question 19
Page 20 Item 4. “Request will be placed as needed but estimated request will not be placed more
than once per week per location.” In computing delivery cost with regular and rush deliveries,
what can we expect for the number of deliveries/pick-ups required per location? Or can we
establish set pick-up and deliveries with the Courts?

Answer to Question 19

The bid specifications are amended to reflect a high frequency and a low frequency of requests
and deliveries.  See “AMENDMENT.”

Question 20

Page 15 Pro-ration of charges for inventory on hand- Charging by the day is difficult if not
impossible to calculate on a billing standpoint; is this requirement negotiable ?

Answer to Question 20

No, this is not negotiable.
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Question 21

Who is responsible for damaged cartons coming from the current vendor?

Answer to Question 21

The awarded vendor will be responsible for re-boxing and labeling any cartons that are
damaged upon arrival at their facility.  See paragraph “Item 3: Re-Preparation” on p.20 of the
bid specifications.

Question 22

Will the inventory report provided break out each Courts and location for reporting purposes?

Answer to Question 22

The inventory report will be by County Clerk and, for Family Courts, by county.

Question 23

Do you have a file level inventory listing for your records?

Answer to Question 23

See Answer to Question 22.

Question 24

Pricing grid and service descriptions do not address the per-carton pull charge upon termination
of contract. Should there be an additional line item under Item 8?

Answer to Question 24

See paragraph “Transfer preparation Upon Termination of Contract”, p.23, for which there is a
line item on the Bid Response Form.

Question 25

In item 1-Storage, should the entry per carton be per year?

Answer to Question 25

Item 1 gives the approximate total number of cartons currently stored in New York City.  On the
Bid Response Form, we request a price per carton and we indicate the estimated number of
cartons that will be in storage of each year of the initial five-year term of the contract resulting
from this RFB.
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Question 26

There is no line item for the purchase of empty boxes. Should there be one?

Answer to Question 26

No.  Cartons will be supplied by the Courts and remain their property.  The awarded vendor will
be responsible, at his own cost, for replacing cartons damaged while in its possession.  The cost
for “Re-Preparation” must include the cost of the carton.  Also see paragraph
“Pricing/Compensation” on p. 14, “all pricing submitted pursuant to the solicitation shall be
net and include all costs for the performance of all services required under this solicitation.”

Question 27

There is no line item for an hourly labor rate? Should there be one?

Answer to Question 27

No.  See paragraph “Pricing/Compensation” on p. 14, “all pricing submitted pursuant to the
solicitation shall be net and include all costs for the performance of all services required under
this solicitation.”

Question 28

Item 4-Retrieval & Delivery, states the estimated requirement that requests will not be placed
more than once per week. Is this the current process?

Answer to Question 28

Please see Answer to Question 19 and AMENDMENT.

Question 29

Regarding the notice on page 11 of the bid package, stating the transport from the current facility
is not included, will there be a separate bid for this transfer? If there is not a separate bid, who is
responsible for this transfer?

Answer to Question 29

Transportation to a new awarded vendor will be a separate procurement.

Question 30

Does a qualified supplier need to be staffed and operational on a 24/7/365 basis?
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Answer to Question 30

The UCS expects, as part of the disaster preparedness plan, to see a schedule for managerial
and regular staff to be on call 24/7/365, in order to address any emergency.

Question 31

For all new records picked up from UCS locations, is the vendor expected to index the contents?

Answer to Question 31

No.

Question 32

Is scanning and electronic delivery of archived files expected in certain situations?

Answer to Question 32

No.  It is not expected but may be accepted in certain emergencies. 

Question 33

For the "Implied Requirements" section on page 10, can you please clarify this point further,
perhaps by providing some examples?

Answer to Question 33   

Implied requirements are requirements that, while not specifically stated in the RFB/RFP, are
necessary in order to perform the requested services in accordance with the specifications.
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AMENDMENT       

Paragraph “ Item 4.  Retrieval and Delivery of Stored Materials/Return to Storage” (pp.
20,21) is amended. Requests for retrieval and delivery will be placed three (3) to  five (5) times
per week for some Courts/locations and more commonly once (1x) or twice (2x) a week for most
Courts/locations.  Please see new paragraph below headed “Frequency of Requests for Retrieval
and Delivery.”       

Cost basis: Charges for the retrievals (pulls) and delivery to the Courts/locations of specific files
shall be quoted on a cost per file and a cost per carton basis  including all related charges
(physical or administrative), for two frequencies of requests and delivery, i.e. 3-5 times per week
and 1-2 times a week.   If an entire carton is retrieved and returned to a Courts/location, the
storage fee will apply only for the portion of the month that the carton is actually in storage,
including the date of delivery to the Courts.  If files are removed from a carton, but  the carton
contains additional files and remains in storage, the storage fee for the carton will apply for the
entire month.

Cost basis summary:

Regular retrieval and delivery

High frequency:3- 5 times a week Cost per file and cost per carton

Low frequency: 1-2  times a week Cost per file and cost per carton

Rush (overnight) retrieval and delivery Cost per file and cost per carton

Regular return

Paragraph “Frequency of Requests for Retrieval and Delivery” is added to the Detailed
Specifications:

“The frequency of requests for retrievals and deliveries varies among the Courts/locations.  It is
estimated that there will be two ranges of frequencies, one high frequency and one low
frequency.   

High frequency: 3-5 times a week,   for a volume of approximately 85,000 files over five (5)
years.

Low frequency: 1-2  times a week,  for a volume of approximately 76,500 files over five (5)
years.

As a result of this new paragraph, the Bid Response Form, #4 “Retrieval and Delivery of Stored
Materials/Return to Storage”  is amended.  Please see AMENDED BID RESPONSE FORM.

9



OCA/DCAJ-181-B QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 

Paragraph “Summary of Cost per Unit Basis, item 4" is amended (All other items remain
the same):   

4. Retrieval and Delivery of Stored Materials/Return

to Storage:

Regular retrieval and delivery

High frequency: 3-5 times a week Cost per file and cost per carton

Low frequency: 1-2 time a week Cost per file and cost per carton

Rush (overnight) retrieval and delivery Cost per file and cost per carton

Regular return Cost per file and cost per carton
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AMENDED BID RESPONSE FORM (p. 1 of 3)

Item 4.  Retrieval and Delivery of Stored Materials/Return to Storage is amended.  All other
categories remain the same.

Bidders MUST submit the Amended Bid Response Form with their proposal or their bid
response will be disqualified.

Pricing shall remain firm throughout the initial 5-year term of the contract. Request for price
increases shall only be entertained for the renewal terms (See paragraph “Pricing”.) In case of
bidder’s miscalculation, cost per unit shall prevail.

1.  STORAGE PRICE - The estimated numbers of cartons reflect the estimated number of
cartons in storage after the destruction of cartons.

$__________/ctn x 298,900 cartons year 1 = $_________________________

$__________/ctn x 347,900 cartons year 2 = $_________________________

$__________/ctn x 356,900 cartons year 3 = $_________________________

$__________/ctn x 365,900 cartons year 4 = $_________________________

$__________/ctn x 374,900 cartons year 5 = $_________________________

5-year price = $ _________________________

2.  PICK-UP (REMOVAL) AND TRANSPORTATION OF ADDITIONAL CARTONS

$__________/ctn x 46,100 cartons year 1 = $_________________________

$__________/ctn x 50,400 cartons   years 2 - 5 = $_________________________

(12,600 ctns x 4 years)

5-year price = $ _________________________

3.  RE-PREPARATION

$ ________/ctn x    15,000 ctns (total for 5 years) = $ ________________________

11



OCA/DCAJ-181-B QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 

AMENDED BID RESPONSE FORM (p. 2 of 3)

4.  RETRIEVAL AND DELIVERY OF STORED MATERIALS/ RETURN

TO STORAGE   Item 4. is amended as follows to reflect high and low frequencies:

5-year Quantity 5-year Price

Regular retrieval and delivery

High frequency: 3-5 times a week

$________/file x       85,000 files = $_________________________

$________/carton x      500 ctns = $_________________________

Low frequency: 1-2 times a week

$________/file x       76,500 files = $_________________________

$________/carton x      750 ctns = $_________________________

Rush (overnight) retrieval and delivery

$ ________/file x          13,000 = $_________________________

$________/carton x         125 = $ ________________________

Regular return to storage

$ ________/file x  168,500 = $_________________________

$________carton x      1,350 = $ _________________________

5-year price = $ ________________________

5.  INTERFILING/ADDITIONS TO PREVIOUSLY STORED CARTONS

$__________/file x   5,300 files   year 1 = $_________________________

$__________/file x 16,000 files   year 2 to year 5

(4,000 files per year x 4 yrs) = $_________________________

5-year price = $ _________________________

[6.  COMPUTERIZED INVENTORIES AT NO COST TO UCS]
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AMENDED BID RESPONSE FORM (p. 3 of 3)

7.  DESTRUCTION (shredding or pulping - 864,000 lbs. over 5 years)

$________/lb x     288,000 lbs.  Year 1 = $ _________________________

$________/lb x     576,000 lbs.  Years 2 - 5 = $ _________________________

(144,000 lbs./year x 4 yrs)

      Less $ credit /lb, if applicable 

       $ _______/lb x     864,000 lbs. (5 years) = $ (________________________)

5-year price = $ _________________________

8.  TRANSFER PREPARATION

$ ________/ctn x       374,900 cartons (end of year 5) = $_________________________

GRAND TOTAL PRICE for 5 years = $________________________

(Sum of total price 1. to 8.)

Company Name: ___________________________________________________________

Authorized Officer’s Name and Title: 
_________________________________________________________________________

Signature:    _______________________________     Date: ________________________
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